
1

Portfolio Holder for Environment and Sustainability
Meeting Venue

Meeting date
Monday, 5 September 2016

Meeting time

For further information please contact

County Hall
Llandrindod Wells

Powys
LD1 5LG

Stephen Boyd
Stephen Boyd
steve.boyd@powys.gov.uk
01597 826374

26th August, 2016

AGENDA

1. FOOTBRIDGE ON FOOTPATH LL10A, LLANDRINDOD WELLS 

(Pages 3 - 76)

Public Document Pack

mailto:steve.boyd@powys.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.

PORTFOLIO HOLDER DELEGATED DECISION 
by

COUNTY COUNCILLOR W JOHN T POWELL
(PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY)

AND
COUNTY COUNCILLOR WYNNE T JONES

(PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR FINANCE)
AND

COUNTY COUNCILLOR JOHN H BRUNT
(PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HIGHWAYS)

August 2016

REPORT AUTHOR: Countryside Access Officer (Operational)
Definitive Map and Commons Registration Officer

SUBJECT: Footbridge on Footpath LL10A, Llandrindod Wells

REPORT FOR: Decision 

1 Summary 
1.1 This report is further to the previous Delegated Decision made by 

Portfolio Holders, dated 24th November 2015. That decision approved 
the demolition of the footbridge spanning the railway line, over which 
ran Footpath LL10(A) in Llandrindod Wells. The footpath runs between 
Alexandra Court and the playing fields / Rock Park. A copy of the 
previous report, which outlines the history and background to this 
issue, is attached in Appendix 1. 

1.2 Following the decision made by Portfolio Holders in November 2015, 
Network Rail were instructed to remove the structure. The works were 
undertaken in March 2016.

1.3 After the decision to demolish the existing structure was made, there 
has been correspondence from some residents, Kirsty Williams AM 
and Chris Davies MP. Kirsty Williams forwarded copies of 
correspondence she had received, from concerned residents who did 
not wish to see the structure removed. Appendix 2 includes a summary 
of the correspondence forwarded to Countryside Services on the 
matter. 

1.4 Kirsty Williams has stated that there is strong public feeling over the 
matter, however, Countryside Services have directly received 
comments from less than ten members of the public. Also included in 
Appendix 2 is an email from two interested parties, who have 

Page 3

1



2

requested that Portfolio Holders take their view into account when 
making a decision over the future of any structure at this location. 

1.5 Gwynedd County Council Engineers were commissioned to undertake 
an Options Report looking into the possible options for replacement of 
the footbridge. This included cost estimates for the options and 
possible restrictions. The Options Report in full can be found in 
Appendix 3. 
 

1.6 The options explored included the following 1) replacement with a like-
for-like structure meeting current safety standards, 2) a footbridge fully 
accessible for all, 3) a footbridge that could also be used by cyclists, 
and 4) an option for a footbridge that could be upgraded in the future to 
meet Equalities Act standards. The engineer’s recommendation, along 
with costings and reasoning’s, are included within the report in 
Appendix 3. 

1.7 All of the options outlined within the engineer’s report are outside the 
scope of the Countryside Services budget. Additional funding would 
have to be identified from outside the Service to construct any of the 
replacement options. 

1.8 Portfolio Holders are reminded that QC advice was obtained on this 
matter (Appendices 4 and 5.) The QC (George Laurence) is of the 
opinion that the bridge is not maintainable at public expense. Although, 
Powys County Council have the power to repair and replace the 
structure if they wish, there is no duty to do so.

1.9 Portfolio Holders are now requested to make a decision over the future 
of a structure in this location.

2 Proposal
2.1 That Portfolio Holders make a decision over whether to provide a 

replacement structure at this location at the present time. 

3 One Powys Plan 
3.1 As there are alternative routes to the open space and Rock Park areas, 

a decision over replacing the footbridge is not considered to have an 
impact on any of the objectives outlined in the One Powys Plan. 

4 Options Considered/Available
4.1 Portfolio members are requested to make a decision over whether to 

provide a replacement structure. A summary of the replacement bridge 
options are shown in the table overleaf. 

Page 4



3

 Table 1. Summary of Replacement Options and Costs
Bridge Type Design, 

Contracts, 
Surveys and 
Fees

Construction 
Costs

Total Cost

1. Similar to 
previous 
structure but 
meeting modern 
design 
requirements 

£28,500 £250,000
 
£278,500

2. Full DDA 
compliant 
structure

£28,500 £781,500 £810,000

3. Similar to 
previous but 
with option to 
adapt for future 
DDA provision

£28,500 £290,500 £319,000

4. Full DDA 
Compliant plus 
cycle provision

£28,500 £914,000 £942,500

4.2 Option One is to provide a similar replacement structure over the 
railway line, meeting modern design requirements. This would 
comprise a flat span over the railway, between columns built on railway 
property where the original supports were. There would be steps on the 
approach to the span over the railway. The proposed bridge would be 
wider than the original, as the extra width provides better compliance 
with current standards at little extra construction cost. The estimated 
cost of this option is £278,500.

4.3 Option Two provides a fully DDA compliant solution. The main span 
over the railway would be supported on columns outside the railway 
boundary, providing ease of construction with no need to gain consent 
to construct on railway property land. In addition the main span would 
be slightly arched; this achieves the clearance over the railway but 
starts to reduce the height of the bridge, so slightly reducing the length 
of approach ramps. To maintain a shallow gradient of no more than 1 
in 20 this solution requires long lengths of approach ramps, from the 
public open space they will be a dominant feature looking east. These 
have the potential to be unsightly and would be a significant addition to 
the bridge. The recommended width of the bridge and ramps is 2.0m to 
allow easy passing of two wheelchairs. To save on construction costs it 
is recommended that the lower length of the approach ramp be 
constructed on an earth embankment rather than steel spans. This 
embankment could be top soiled and landscaped in a manner to suit 

Page 5



4

the use of the adjacent land (grass/bushes/trees). The estimated cost 
of this option is £810,000.

4.4 Option Three would provide a bridge similar in alignment and 
accessibility to the original (Option One), but with a larger width and 
landings included in the design to allow for future installation of shallow 
approach ramps. This option would be more expensive to construct 
compared to Option One, due to the additional landings and greater 
width. With provision for future upgrade to make it DDA compliant, 
construction may be justified as an interim measure, with the 
installation of ramps being possible in the future when further funding 
may be obtained. The estimated cost of this option is £319,000.

4.5 Option Four provides a fully DDA compliant solution with additional 
provision to suit use for cyclists. This may make it viable to tap into 
other funding pools and so provide an easier mechanism by which the 
reinstatement of the bridge can be achieved. Cycle provision would 
however increase the cost of the bridge as the parapets for cycle 
routes have to be 1.5m high (300mm more than pedestrian) and the 
bridge needs to be wider, a minimum of 2.5m wide, where there is 
combined use by cyclists and pedestrians. Other than these changes 
the alignment, profile and access for construction are all the same as 
Option Two. The estimated cost for this option is £942,500.

4.6 The estimated costs for Options One, Two, Three and Four are outside 
the scope of the Countryside Services budget. If the decision was 
made to replace this structure, appropriate funding would have to be 
identified. 

4.7 If the decision is taken to provide a replacement structure, it will take a 
significant length of time to secure appropriate funding, undertake 
detailed surveys, commission engineering specifications, go through 
the procurement process and complete construction. The footpath 
would remain inaccessible beyond the current closure, which expires in 
September 2016. 

4.8 Option Five is that Portfolio Holders decide not to provide a 
replacement structure at this location at the present time. 

4.9 QC advice maintains that the previous structure was not maintainable 
at public expense and therefore Powys County Council has no duty to 
replace the structure. The advice also suggests that if there is no 
structure at that location, the public right of way over the former 
footbridge ceases to exist. As such, the current closure may not need 
to be extended in September 2016, if the footbridge were not to be 
replaced. The QC advice in full is attached in Appendices 4 and 5.

4.10 QC advice can only be tested through the courts; there is a risk that if 
the footbridge is not replaced, a formal challenge may be made. 

Page 6



5

5. Preferred Choice and Reasons
5.1 Option Five is the preferred choice. 

5.2 The Alexandra Road Footbridge was not maintainable at public 
expense. Powys County Council had a power but not a duty to 
maintain the structure. Given the significant costs involved with 
providing a replacement structure, it is not deemed an appropriate use 
of public resources to replace the structure at this time. If resources 
were to become available in the future, this decision could be revisited.    

5.3 This footpath provides a means of access between the residential area 
of Llandrindod to the east of the railway line and the playing fields. 
(Please see Appendix 6) There are two alternative routes which allow 
access between the Alexandra Court area and the playing fields / Rock 
Park. The eastern end of footpath LL10(A) starts at the junction of 
Temple Avenue, Montpellier Park and Alexandra Court. The first 
alternative route, via footpaths CF12 and CF13, starts 135 metres 
away at the corner of Montpellier Park. The second alternative route, 
via Park Lane and footpath LL10, starts 298 metres away. Both of 
these routes can be accessed from Alexandra Court along surfaced 
pavements.

5.4 Both alternative routes are considered to be physically at least as 
accessible as the footbridge, if not more so, in terms of the surfacing, 
gradient and number of steps. The old footbridge had a steel deck that 
could become slippery when wet, was narrow (0.9 metres wide) and 
had a two stage, steep flight of steps at one end. The alternative routes 
are both significantly wider than this, with tarmac and / or aggregate 
surfacing. One alternative route has no steps. The other route (footpath 
LL12) has a short flight of steps; the treads are much deeper and the 
steps are on a gentler gradient than those on the footbridge. 

6 Sustainability and Environmental Issues/Equalities/Crime and 
Disorder,/Welsh Language/Other Policies etc

6.1 Given the alternative routes available (as outlined in 5.3 and 5.4), it is 
felt that the decision not to replace the structure would not present 
significant issues in terms of equalities. 

6.2 If the decision is taken to provide a replacement structure, 
consideration must be given to how the new structure meets the 
requirements of the Equalities Act. Powys County Council would need 
to evaluate the situation and conclude if it is, or is not, reasonable to 
install a fully accessible structure at the location and be able to fully 
explain its reasoning as to how it made its decision (the justification). 
Some could argue that if the authority decides to replace the structure, 
not installing a fully accessible structure would be unreasonable. 
Conversely, others could argue the opposite, citing the significant 
differences in cost as a reasonable justification.  

Page 7



6

6.3 If a replacement structure were to be provided, there would be 
sustainability issues as Powys County Council would be liable for all 
future maintenance of the structure. 

6.4 The proposal is not considered to impact on the Crime and Disorder, 
Welsh Language or other Policies.

6.5 The work of Countryside Services, with regards to public rights of way, 
is outlined in the Powys Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2007-2017. 
Due to scarce resources and high demand, works on public rights of 
way have to be prioritised. The current policy is called the Priority 
Community Area Approach, which specifies that works within an Area 
officer’s patch are targeted in the community with the highest demand. 
(There are some works which fall outside of this prioritisation, such as 
health & safety concerns and grant-funded works for example.) 
Llandrindod Wells is not currently a priority community, so footpath 
LL10(A) should not receive higher attention for works as there are no 
longer any health & safety concerns. 

 

7 Children and Young People's Impact Statement - Safeguarding 
and Wellbeing

7.1 Footpath LL10(A) allows access from Alexandra Court to the playing 
fields and Rock Park on the other side of the railway line. This is an 
open space available for play and outdoor recreation, recently a 
community orchard has been planted there too. As there are two 
alternative routes to this open space, the wellbeing of children and 
young people will not be significantly impacted by a decision not to 
replace the footbridge. 

8 Local Member(s)
8.1 Cllr T. Turner - Option 1 is my preferred choice and I ask that the 

council explore all funding opportunities to provide a replacement 
structure. Local residents would very disappointed if Option 5 was 
taken up. 

9 Other Front Line Services 
9.1 Development Control – The Gwynedd engineers report outlines that 

some of the potential replacement options may require planning 
permission. Powys County Council’s Development Control team have 
advised that under Part 13 of the GPDO regarding development by 
Highway Authorities, none of the replacement bridge options would 
require planning permission as the works could be undertaken under 
permitted development rights. 

Page 8



7

10 Support Services (Legal, Finance, Corporate Property, HR, ICT, 
Business Services)

10.1 Professional Lead – Legal agrees with the recommendation set out in 
this report taking into account all matters as well as Powys CC legal 
position/obligations as outlined in the QC’s advice attached to this 
report.

10.2 Finance -The Capital and Financial Planning Accountant confirms that 
the replacement bridge is not in the capital programme.  

11 Local Service Board/Partnerships/Stakeholders etc
11.1 n/a

12 Corporate Communications
12.1 The report is of public interest and requires a proactive news release 

and use of appropriate social media to publicise the decision.

13 Statutory Officers 
13.1 Strategic Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) - The comments 

that funding for a replacement isn’t in the overall capital programme 
has been confirmed by the Capital and Financial Planning Accountant. 
The legal comments confirm the council does not have responsibility to 
fund a replacement.

13.2 Solicitor to the Council (Monitoring Officer) - I note the legal comments 
and the external QC advice obtained and have nothing to add.

14 Members’ Interests
14.1 The Monitoring Officer is not aware of any specific interests that may 

arise in relation to this report. If the Portfolio Holders have an interest 
they should declare, complete the relevant notification form and refer 
the matter to Cabinet for decision.

15 Future Status of the Report
15.1 Members are invited to consider the future status of this report and 

whether it can be made available to the press and public either 
immediately following the meeting or at some specified point in the 
future.

Page 9



8

Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation:
That the decision be taken not to 
provide a replacement structure over 
the railway line near Alexandra Court 
in Llandrindod Wells. 

Powys County Council does not have 
a duty to provide or maintain a 
structure at this location. Due to the 
significant replacement costs and the 
fact that there are alternative routes 
available, the structure should not be 
replaced.

Relevant Policy (ies): Powys ROWIP 2007-2017
Within Policy: Y Within Budget: Y 

Relevant Local Member(s): Cllr T Turner

Person(s) To Implement Decision: Nina Davies
Date By When Decision To Be Implemented: September 2016

Contact Officer Name: Tel: Fax: Email:
Nina Davies 01597 827683 nina.davies@powys.gov.uk

Background Papers used to prepare Report:

Appendix 1 Portfolio Holder Delegated Decision Report 24th Nov 
2015 Alexandra Road Footbridge

Appendix 2 2a Summary of Correspondence 2b Email from 
Interested Parties

Appendix 3 YGC Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options 
Report

Appendix 4 Appendices 4a and b QC advice May 2015 and 
accompanying plan –CONFIDENTIAL AND LEGALLY 
PRIVILEGED

Appendix 5 Updated QC Advice June 2015 – CONFIDENTIAL AND 
LEGALLY PRIVILEGED

Appendix 6 Location plan – footbridge and alternative routes

CABINET REPORT TEMPLATE VERSION 3

Page 10



1

CYNGOR SIR POWYS COUNTY COUNCIL.

PORTFOLIO HOLDER DELEGATED DECISION 
by

COUNTY COUNCILLOR W JOHN T POWELL
(PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABILITY)

AND
COUNTY COUNCILLOR WYNNE T JONES

(PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR FINANCE)
AND

COUNTY COUNCILLOR JOHN H BRUNT
(PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HIGHWAYS)

24TH NOVEMBER 2015

REPORT AUTHOR: Nina Davies, Countryside Access Officer (Operational)
Sian Barnes, Definitive Map and Commons Registration 
Officer

SUBJECT: Footbridge on Footpath LL10A  

REPORT FOR: Decision

1 Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to agree a way forward with regards to the 
future of a footbridge spanning the railway line, over which runs 
Footpath LL10(A) in Llandrindod Wells. The footbridge – and footpath – 
run between Alexandra Court and the playing fields / Rock Park.

 
1.2 In the 1960’s, Radnorshire County Council was given permission by 

the British Railways Board to construct a bridge over the Heart of 
Wales railway line at O.S. grid ref: SO 058606 in Llandrindod Wells. 

1.3 The bridge carried a private footpath. It is believed that the reason for 
this is that access was needed between the Llandrindod Wells County 
Secondary School and its playing fields. However, this is not specified 
in the easement and agreement giving permission for the bridge to be 
built.

1.4 The bridge file holds correspondence highlighting discussions over the 
bridge and its maintenance dating back to 1996. No conclusion was 
ever reached as to which department would, or should be responsible 
for the structure; numerous council departments were considered, 
including Education, Highways and Property Services. Corporate 
Property has confirmed that the council has not undertaken any work 
on the bridge since 1999, but earlier records were not available.

Page 11



2

1.5 Corporate Property commissioned an Engineer’s report in September 
2010, (Appendix 1). The report highlighted erosion to the bridge 
structure. Recommendations for repair were made within the report, as 
it was assumed at that time that Powys County Council would be 
responsible for maintaining the bridge, but no repair work was carried 
out. 

1.6 An application for a Definitive Map Modification Order was received in 
2006 and completed in 2013; this resulted in a public right of way being 
recorded over the Alexandra Road Footbridge (Footpath LL10A). 

1.7 The footbridge was inspected by one of the Council’s structural 
engineers in July 2014. Due to verbal concerns raised following this, 
Countryside Officers took the decision to close the bridge to the public. 
A temporary Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) to close the bridge and 
stop public access across it has been in place since August 2014. The 
closure runs out in March 2016 and cannot be extended. 

1.8 A written Structural Inspection Report was received in October 2014 
(Appendix 2). The report highlighted significant concerns regarding 
erosion to the bridge. It was stated that any required repairs were likely 
to be extensive and it was anticipated that it would be cheaper to 
replace the whole steel footbridge. However, as the footbridge is not to 
modern access standards, a significantly larger structure would be 
required to meet Equality Act requirements.

1.9 The recommendation of the 2014 engineer report was that “In view of 
the poor condition of this footbridge, its critical high risk location, and 
the lack of knowledge of the existing load capacity, it should remain 
closed and either be made good, replaced with a new structure or 
removed.”

1.10 “The Footbridge is currently closed, but will be continuing to 
deteriorate, and could collapse onto the railway. If the footbridge 
cannot be repaired or replaced in the near future the Steel structure of 
the footbridge should be removed.” 

1.11 Counsel advice on land ownership was requested whilst the application 
for a Definitive Map Modification Order was being processed; this cast 
doubt over the assumption that Powys County Council would be 
responsible for maintaining the footbridge. 

1.12 Given that, George Laurence QC was asked for advice on the matter 
(14th May 2015, Appendices 3 and 4.) He is of the opinion that the 
bridge is not maintainable at public expense. Although, PCC have the 
power to repair and replace the structure if they wish, there is no duty 
to do so. 

Page 12



3

1.13 Mr Laurence highlighted the fact that Network Rail could repair, replace 
or demolish the bridge and then re-charge the costs to Powys County 
Council. 

1.14 A meeting was held with Network Rail on 23rd September 2015 to 
discuss the future of the bridge. Network Rail have provided costs for 
the demolition of the bridge and line possession of £53,911.11 
(Appendix 5), which includes environmental and other surveys. The 
surveys may identify additional work that is not included in these costs. 

1.15 The demolition could be completed by Network Rail before the 
temporary closure expires in March 2016. 

1.16 On 15th October 2015, Countryside Services were made aware of 
vandalism to the barriers preventing access to the bridge. The crime 
reference number is DRL/0510/20/10/2015/01/c. On inspection 
Countryside Officers found that the steel chains holding the barriers in 
place had been cut and the barriers moved to allow access to the 
bridge. There was evidence of the bridge being used. Officers bought 
core-strengthened chains and made the bridge secure. 

2 Proposal
2.1 That the decision be made to instruct Network Rail to remove the 

bridge over the railway line before March 2016, in line with the quote 
they have provided of £53,911.11. 

3 One Powys Plan 
3.1 Responding to potential safety hazards on public rights of way (as a 

highway) is part of the Council’s statutory duties; one of the primary 
duties of a Highway Authority is to maintain safe passage for users of 
the highway network. That is not specifically provided for in the One 
Powys Plan, but remains a legal statutory duty of the Council. Engineer 
advice states that the bridge is not safe for use. Therefore it is the 
council’s responsibility to act on that advice by restricting access to the 
bridge and taking appropriate action with regard to its future. 

4 Options Considered/Available
4.1 Option One would involve repairing the footbridge and re-opening it. 

The 2014 Engineer report stated that “The required repairs are likely to 
be extensive and we anticipate that it will be cheaper to replace the 
whole steel footbridge retaining the existing concrete foundations than 
to repair it. However the footbridge is not to modern access standards, 
we have not looked at what would be required to replace this bridge to 
modern standards, but would expect a significantly larger structure to 
be required due to the need for a low incline ramp (which would also 
require additional foundations).” 

4.2 Option Two would be to leave the footbridge closed under a Traffic 
Regulation Order for the foreseeable future. However, when the 
temporary closure runs out in March 2016 it would be necessary to 

Page 13



4

open the bridge to public access for a short time before another closure 
could be implemented. In the meantime, the bridge would be 
continuing to deteriorate. It is known that attempts have been made to 
forcibly access the bridge, as noted in point 1.16 above. There is a risk 
that further such attempts will be made. This poses a risk to both those 
making the attempts and to other members of the public, who, on 
removal of the relevant signage and / or barriers, may not then be 
aware that the footbridge is still considered to be dangerous.  

4.3 Option Three involves the demolition of the bridge, as an interim safety 
measure whilst discussions as to the future of the bridge are ongoing. 
Network Rail have provided quote for costs of £53,911.11. Only 
Network Rail can undertake the removal of the bridge as it is on railway 
land and over a live track. The current closure of the bridge runs out in 
March 2016 and it cannot be extended without opening the bridge to 
the public for a period. Due to the significant health and safety 
concerns raised by the engineer, it is felt unwise to open the bridge to 
the public, even for a short timeframe. Given that, it seems prudent to 
arrange for the demolition to occur before March 2016. 

5. Preferred Choice and Reasons
5.1 Option Three is the preferred choice. Engineer advice is that repair 

would be more expensive than replacement and that the bridge is 
deteriorating and should be removed if it is not to be repaired. 
Therefore, Option Three would allow for the removal of a dangerous 
structure over the railway, before the temporary closure comes to an 
end. The recent vandalism to the barriers restricting access lends 
support for the demolition proceeding, at the earliest possible 
opportunity. 

5.2 When the barriers were vandalised and removed, evidence was found 
that someone may have taken a child’s buggy or pram over the bridge. 
The Police also raised concerns that children may access the bridge. 
Its urban location means that it is easily accessible by a large number 
of people, including children; the fact that it spans a railway line makes 
it particularly dangerous. 

5.2 A Virement Form has been completed outlining a transfer from Specific 
Reserves (Transport) for the funding required to pay Network Rail the 
£53,911.11 to remove the bridge over the railway. 

6 Sustainability and Environmental Issues/Equalities/Crime and 
Disorder,/Welsh Language/Other Policies etc

6.1 This footpath provides a means of access between the residential area 
of Llandrindod to the east of the railway line and the playing fields. 
(Please see Appendix 6) There are two alternative routes which allow 
access between the Alexandra Court area and the playing fields / Rock 
Park. The eastern end of footpath LL10(A) starts at the junction of 
Temple Avenue, Montpellier Park and Alexandra Court. The first 
alternative route, via footpaths CF12 and CF13, starts 135 metres 

Page 14



5

away at the corner of Montpellier Park. The second alternative route, 
via Park Lane and footpath LL10, starts 298 metres away. Both of 
these routes can be accessed from Alexandra Court along surfaced 
pavements.

6.2 Both alternative routes are considered to be physically at least as 
accessible as the footbridge, if not more so, in terms of the surfacing, 
gradient and number of steps. The current footbridge has a steel deck 
that can become slippery when wet, is narrow (0.9 metres wide) and 
has a two stage, steep flight of steps at one end. The alternative routes 
are both significantly wider than this, with tarmac and / or aggregate 
surfacing. One alternative route has no steps. The other route (footpath 
LL12) has a short flight of steps; the treads are much deeper and the 
steps are on a gentler gradient than those on the footbridge. Given 
that, it is not felt that demolition of the footbridge would present 
significant issues in terms of equalities or sustainability.

6.2 The proposal is not considered to impact on the Crime and Disorder, 
Welsh Language or other Policies, other than that removal of the 
footbridge may reduce the potential for vandalism.

7 Children and Young People's Impact Statement - Safeguarding 
and Wellbeing

7.1 Removing the dangerous structure would help to protect children and 
young people who may be tempted to ignore the barriers and signs to 
access the bridge. The Police raised concerns that the bridge may be 
accessed by children. 

8 Local Member(s)

8.1 Cllr T. Turner – As the local member effected I have to disagree very 
strongly with the councils preferred option of demolishing. I should like 
to fight to have the bridge repaired and opened.

9 Other Front Line Services 
9.1 No known implications for other front line services. Despite closure for 

more than 12 months, no concerns have been raised from other 
Services. 

9.2 Development Management have advised that Network Rail will need to 
submit a Demolition Notification and post site notices before 
undertaking the removal of the footbridge. The matter will need to be 
taken to the Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee. 
Network Rail will be advised accordingly.

10 Support Services (Legal, Finance, Corporate Property, HR, ICT, 
Business Services)

 

Page 15



6

9.1 Legal - The Professional Lead – Legal supports the recommendation 
outlined in this report.

9.2 Finance – given the current economic climate affecting the Council’s 
revenue funding, it would seem appropriate that the recommended 
option be funded from Specific Reserves (Transport). 

11 Local Service Board/Partnerships/Stakeholders etc
11.1 N/A

12 Corporate Communications
12.1 A Communications strategy and press release will be implemented 

upon member decision.

13 Statutory Officers 
13.1 Strategic Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) - The Strategic 

Director Resources (S151 Officer) notes and supports the comments 
made by finance.

13.2 The Solicitor to the Council (Monitor Officer) has commented as 
follows: “I note the legal comment and have nothing to add to the 
report.”

14 Members’ Interests
The Monitoring Officer is not aware of any specific interests that may 
arise in relation to this report. If the Portfolio Holder(s) have an interest 
he/ they should declare, complete the relevant notification form and 
refer the matter to Cabinet for decision.

15 Future Status of the Report

Members are invited to consider the future status of this report and 
whether it can be made available to the press and public either 
immediately following the meeting or at some specified point in the 
future.

The view of the Monitoring Officer is that:

Recommendation: Reason for Recommendation:
Instruct Network Rail to remove the 
bridge over the railway as soon as 
possible and in any case by March 
2016 at the latest. 

That the virement of £53,911.11 from 
Specific Reserves (Transport) be 
agreed to fund the works required. 

Health and safety.
To protect members of the public, 
especially children and young people. 

Page 16



7

Relevant Policy (ies):
Within Policy: Y Within Budget: N 

Relevant Local Member(s): Cllr T Turner

Person(s) To Implement Decision: Sian Barnes & Nina Davies
Date By When Decision To Be Implemented: February 2016

Contact Officer Name: Tel: Fax: Email:
Sian Barnes 01597 827595 01597 827555 sian.barnes@powys.gov.uk

Background Papers used to prepare Report:

Appendix 1 Engineers Report Sept 2010
Appendix 2 Engineers Report Oct 2014
Appendices 3a and b QC advice May 2015 and accompanying plan –

CONFIDENTIAL AND LEGALLY PRIVILEGED
Appendix 4 Updated QC Advice June 2015 – CONFIDENTIAL 

AND LEGALLY PRIVILEGED  
Appendix 5 Network Rail demolition costs - CONFIDENTIAL 

AND COMMERCIALLY SENSITIVE
Appendix 6 Location plan – footbridge and alternative route

CABINET REPORT TEMPLATE VERSION 3

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



���������	
���
��
�������������������
����������������������
�������

���
����������
���
���
���������������� �
���������������

�

���������	�
���		�
�	�
����	��	��	�	���������
������������	�����	���
������


�	�����	����
���������	�
�����
��
�	���	�������
�	������������
�	��������

�	�������	������
�	����	�	�
���
��������������
��	�����
�����
�	��
	���
������

��	��
�	�����	�
������������������������

����	��
���������	
���������
��


�	�
����	�������������������
�������	����������������	��
����
��������	��
�	�

��	���������		�	�
���
������

�	���	��
�����	������	���
� ��
��
��
�	�	�������
�����	���������������
����
�
��

���������	��	��	����������������	�
���������������	���	�
���

��	����

����	����
�	������������	��������		��
������
�
�
	������
	�����������
�

	��	�
��������
����
�	����
��
������
�	�
	�
������������	��	�
�	�
����	�����

��
��	�	��	����������
	����	����
�	�!"��	���������	��	���	���	�	��#�
����
��

������	����
��	����
�����
		�����	��$��	���������	����������	���	�
������

����
����
�����	���
�	�����������	���������	��	�
�����������
��
�
���	���
�	�

�����������	��%���	��
��������	�
�	�	�����
		��������	������	��	����������	��

��������
�������	�����&�	'����������������	�������������	��	����
�	������	��	�

������������������
�	�������������	�	�
����	�(������	�
���
	)����	�����

�����'���
	���*+����,+�
��	��
�	����
�����	�
	��
��-	
���������)���
���
�����

�	���
.����������	�
��
��//���	���������
�� ��
�������	�������
����
��������
�	�

���		�	�
�
	
�		������������	�/���������������

�

������	������	�����������	��	�
����
��
�����������	�������	�����	�����

�����������
����	����������0��
���	������
���	
���	�
�
��
�	���������	���

�//�������	������	����	��
���	�������
�	�	'��
�����
���
��	�
�	��

-	
��������������	�
��
����������
�
���	������

��	����	����������
�	���������������������	��
���������	���	�
���%��	���
�	�

�����������������	�
���	��
�	�
	�������
�	������		�	�
�
������
����
�	�


����	�����	��	
��
�����	�	��		���
��
	����	�������������	���������
�	�

	�
���
	�����
������	�����
	
�		��-	
��������������
�	�/������)��	�
���
	���

�����
����	����
���������	���%��	������-	
����������������������
���������

���	������
�	���������	��������� 	�
�����	�������������������
�����	������

����
	����	����������
�
	������
�	��1��	����	��������2��
�������
		��

�
���
��	�����	�
�	�3��
��
����	�����������
��������	�����
�	������
����
	����	�

����	���������
���
	������
���������

	�
������	��������������	����	��������

�	���
��
�����
	������	����
�
��������������
����������
��������

��	����

����	�������	����	���	��
����������������	����	���	�����
�	���
�������

���	
�
��
�	��	���
��������
	����	��
�	��
�	��	�	����	�
���	
����	�
����	���

Page 19




��
�	�����������	������������������	��������	���	�
������
�	������������

	'	����	���

��	�
����	����	����	�����	����
�������������
	�
�������
�	������������	�

	� ��	��
�	���	�	�������
������
�����������
�������
��	��&��������
��

������������
	����
��
	�����
	�����
�	���	��� ��
�
	�����
�	�
����	�����
����

���
	�������
	�����	��	�
�����
�����������

/�������
�	�
����	�������
�	���	���������4����������)����
����������
�	���3�����

��

�	�
������
������������	'��
�����������������
���
�
�������
�	�	���
�����

��	������
�������

��	�
����	�����	��$��	��
���������
���������	���1�	��	�����	���	����������	����

������	��
������������
���
����
�	��������	���������������	���	����	������


�	���������������������

���	�����������	����
�����
�����
�	������/�������

�	��$����	��������	���	
����

��	�
����	��������	�
��������
�����	
���	���������������	����	��
�	�
����	�


�������	��
��
�	���	����
������������	�����������������
�	�������	��������

�	���	�
���	
���
����
�	�����	����������
��
���

��	�
����	�����
���
�
���//����
��
�
�	��������������	���������	
����	���
��


�	�����������	�����
���
���!+��������������
�	�������
�	�����������������

������
�����
�������
���
������
���
��������������
����
��
�
	�
���
�����
����

������������
�	��������������
��������������	������
���
�������
���	�����
��
�	�

����������

�

&
��
�,��	��������
�	�/���
��/����������	�������	����
������
�	��	�	������

-�
��	��
��
���3��
��
��
	��	
���������0��
�	���	���������	��
�	�
����	�����

��
��
�	�%������3�	����������
����
�	��	��������
���5�/���
�	�/������� ��
�

�����	�
�������
��
���������
�	������	��
���	�������
�������-�
��	�����	�
��
	�

����	�������������	�����������
��	����6�����
����7�8����5��

�

�����
����	�������	��
����9	�������	���	���
��������
���
������	���������

�	���	�
�������
�	������	���	�)����
���������	����
��������	��	
����
����������

���	���	����
��������	�����������	������
�	�
�����	�
�	�
��������	�����
�	�

���
��
��
	�����
�	�/�������	�:�
	����
��
�	�������������������
�	������

	�
����	���
��
�	������������������������
�	�%������3�	������	��
�	�
����	�

���������
��
�	�����	
����	���	�.����	��
���������������������

�����
����	������
�����	�
����	���
��
�	�������������	����������� ������
������

�����	�������
�����	�
��0��
�	���	���������	����	�"�������	���������	���	��


�	�
����	�����������!*��	�����*����������	��,�
��	�����������	�������	����
�	�


����	������
������
�	��� ���������	��	��	����������	�������	�����	��	����


�	������
����������������
�	��������	����	��	
����������
����
��
�	�
����

���	��������
���������
	��
�������������
��	��
�	�����	
�������	���	�������
��

Page 20



�
�������
�	�
����	�
����
���
�	���	������
	���
������������
��%�������

�	���	����
�	��	���
�����������
�
�	�
����	��	��	�	��������;&����
�

&�	'������/���
�
��
�	�����������������
�	�����������	���
��
���	��
��
	�


�����
���������
�
����������
�	���	���������
����
�	���������	'	����	���

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 21



���������	���!�
�����"��#���������	��������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����$�%������<���	�����4��	��	�����=���������������������������������������������������>��

����$�!?�@����*+!?�*!A++�

%�$�%��������	��B/%��$�/���
�����	�%	����	�C�D��=���������������������������������������������������>�����������������������������������������E�

�"$���������	��B/%��$�/���
��/���������C�D=���������������������������������������������������>��0����%
������$����	��B/%��$�

/���
�����	�%	����	�C�D=���������������������������������������������������>��E�

�
�&�"�$�����
��������44!+B&C��0��
�	���	�������44����������

�

<	���%����

�

&��������	�����	�
�	�����
$��$�������
	�	��44!+B&C��������	�
�����
 	�
�
�������������	����
����

;��	���������	���
���!F
��%	�
	�
	��*+!?����	����	���
�
�	�����
���	�	��
������	��
�	������������	�
��


�	��	���������
�	����

����	�
���������������������*G
��0�����
�����	������	����	��
�����������	�

�	�	��	�����	���
���
���	���
����
�	���

	�������H���	���/���
��7����		������	��������
�������

������
�
�	�����������������	����	�	�
����

����	������
����
��
	��������������	�
�	�����
$��$����

�����	�����	��������������
����
���������������	���
��
�	�����������	��6��
������	������	�����
�	�

�����������
�	����
	������	����
��
�	��������
������������&��
�	��	���
�������
�
		�����	���
����

�	
��	������
�������
�����
	�
���
�
�����������	�
�
��
���
�������
�����	����
�	���	�	�	�������
�	�


��������	��
	�$��		����	����
�	��	�����	�����
�	�����
$��$�����������������	���������
�	�/�������

����
�����������	����
�����	�������
���	���������������		����������	���
��
��
����
	�������	��	�
�

�������
�	�����
��
���������
����
��
�
�	��	���
�������	�����&����

	��
�
��	'
��������
�	�����
$��$����

������
	��
������������	��
����	��������	���
�������	'�	����	��������
���
	����
����	�8��������

�

�	�����������
��
����������
�	�	�����	�
��
��
�	��	�	���
����
������/������������

�

�	������

�

%���������<���	��	������

�

������	���0��
�	���	��������4�����������4<!�"4-�

=���������������������������������������������������>�

�

Page 22



 

 

YGC 
Council Offices 
Shirehall Street 
Caernarfon 
LL55 1SH 

 

               

 

 

A L E X A N D R A  ROA D  F OOT B R I D G E  

REPLACEMENT OPTIONS REPORT 

 

 
 

CPF5467 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 23



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 2 of 18 

 

Document Control Sheet 
 
 

Document Author:  Jonathan Chapman 

Project Manager: Jonathan Chapman 

 
 
Revision History 
 

Date Version No. Summary of Changes 

10/05/2016 0.01 First Issue - Draft 

09/06/16 0.02 Second Issue – Cost Estimate & Embeded Photographs included 

14/06/16 0.03 
Minor revision to ‘Public Open Space’ description following Clients 
Comments 13/06 

   

 
 
Approvals 
 

Approved by  Signature Date Version 

O.R. Jones  10/05/2016 0.01 

O.R. Jones  09/06/2016 0.02 

 
 
Distribution 
 

Name  Title  Date Version 

Nina Davies Countryside Services (Powys) 14/6/2016 0.03 

    

    

 
 
 
 

 © 2016-17 Gwynedd Council / YGC. All Rights Reserved. 
 

Copyright in any or all of this documentation belongs to Gwynedd Council / YGC of Council Offices, Shirehall Street, 
Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1SH (the 'Owner') and may not be used, sold, transferred, copied or reproduced in whole or in part, 

in any manner of form or on any media to any person other than in accordance with the terms of the Owner's agreement or 
otherwise without the prior written consent of the Owner. 

 

    
Green Dragon Certified 

Ardystiad Y Ddraig Werdd ISO9001:2008 

FS526386 ISO14001:2004 

EMS 526388 

ISO18001:2007 

OHS 526389 

 
 
 

Page 24



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 3 of 18 

 

Summary 
 
YGC were commissioned by Powys Council to consider possible options for the replacement of the 
footbridge in Llandrindod Wells known as Alexandra Road Footbridge.  This report summarises the 
possible options, cost estimates for the options and the possible restrictions on the construction of 
compliant options. 
 
The conclusion from the report as to the ‘best’ option has to be made by Powys, as all options 
carry some degree of balance be it in cost or design compliance. This is primarily as the height of 
the bridge above the adjacent land requires 125m of approach ramp. 
 
The report recommended option (Option 3) is one of compromise which incorporates a 
replacement bridge with improved geometry over the railway, but maintaining stepped approaches 
as the previous bridge, but with provision of landings where DDA compliant ramps can be 
incorporated in the future when funding can be committed to the scheme.  This option has an 
estimated cost of £290,500. 
 
 
Site Location 
 
The location of the proposed bridge is to follow the line of the original Alexandra Road Footbridge.  
This bridge is located in a suburban area of the town of Llandrindod running from the end of a 
residential road over the single track Heart of Wales Railway line to an area of public open space 
(recreational land).  (Refer to Appendix A for Drawing of Original Structure.) 
 

 
 
 
The original bridge at the location is typical of 1960s railway lattice construction incorporating 
lightweight sections, pedestrian height (1.1m high) parapets of open mesh and very slender 
supports close to the railway track.  Access onto the main span to the East is via a seep ramp and 
to the West over two flights of steep stairs. 
 
The public open space to the west accessed by the footbridge is also accessible from the North 
through Rock Park using steep tracks and/or stepped access, or from the South along a non 

Bridge Location 

Page 25



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 4 of 18 

 

metaled surfaced track of moderate slope.  In both instances the bridge is reached across at least 
100m of grass field. 
 
 
To the North of the bridge the public open space is classed as ‘Village Green’ and as such has 
restrictions over its use and could not be used for the construction of approaches for a new bridge. 
 

 
 
 
A previous study of users of the original bridge has identified that the desire line from the West end 
is for users to walk to the North along the boundary fence with the railway, the new bridge should 
follow this desire line in the exit of any ramps or stairs. 
 
 
Design Requirements for Footbridges 
 
Publicly owned footbridges are generally designed in accordance with structural Eurocodes and to 
the requirements of the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB).  In addition the 
requirements of stakeholders and user groups should be considered; specifically Network Rail, 
DDA compliance and Sustrans in this situation. 
 
Primary Design Standards/codes are: 
 

• DMRB   BD 29/04   Design Criteria for Footbridges 

• DMRB TD19/06    Requirements for Road Restraint Systems 

• BS EN 1990   Basis of Structural Design 

• BS EN 1991-2   Traffic Loads on Bridges 

• BS EN 1993   Design of Steel Structures  

• Sustrans Design Manual Chapter 8 - Bridges and other structures (draft) 

View to ‘Village Green’ from West end of bridge. 

Page 26



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 5 of 18 

 

 
 

Network Rail Requirements 
 
Initial correspondence with network rail has been undertaken to determine if any departure can be 
gained from their requirements for bridge parapets, and to determine fundamental geometry.  They 
have responded that all new footbridges must comply with future line electrification standards and 
so require a 1.8m high solid infill parapet over the line. 
 
They have also commented:   “With regards to the foot bridge supporting columns, these must be 
design as to fall outside Network Rail operational boundary otherwise legal easement agreements 
will be entered into in order to acquire take up of land within the company’s ownership.”    The 
precedent set by the original bridge having lineside supports would potentially allow a legal 
easement to be agreed to reinstate supports at these locations, however there is a risk this may 
take a time to agree and could put short term delivery in jeopardy. 
 
In discussions they have also confirmed clearance over the line should be 5.1m.  the original 
bridge was 5.15m so to allow for construction tolerance and track maintenance the proposed 
clearance is to be maintained as 5.15m. 
 
 
Design Standard Requirements 
 
The critical design standards for footbridges which affect the geometry are:   
 

• Design live loading of 5kN/m2  - This is a feasible loading as the public open space could 
be used for an event which would fully loads the bridge when over and people leave in one 
mass. 

• Vibration limitations – the vertical and horizontal limitations provided in design codes need 
to be met as the location of the bridge in a suburban area may be subject to forced 
vibration by groups of users.  To ensure vibration is within design limits the bridge requires 
sufficient strength and mass.  

• Width between parapets is dependent on usage, as a minimum should be 1.5m. (A wider 
bridge is better for passing of users and 2.0m is a recommended minimum for cycle use.)  
A narrower bridge similar to the existing could only be produced if access for 
wheelchair/mobility scooter users is not possible. 

• Ramp gradients should be less than 1in12, but the length of ramps have to be kept short 
between landings (just 2m at 1in12), hence for a bridge crossings the upper level of ramp is 
usually used (1in20) with ramp lengths between landings kept to a reasonable length.  (For 
buildings this length is defined as 10m, but this is not feasible on large bridge structure 
where ramps become dominant.) 

• Landings should be 1.8m minimum in length. 
 
 
Bridge Construction Types 
 
The original bridge span was 10.5m, this is the minimum the bridge can span over the railway and 
as such the bridge construction type is limited to materials which can span this sort of distance.  
The original steel truss bridge construction type is very appropriate for this sort of span, making 
efficient use of the steel elements and having a minimum distance from the underside of the deck 
to the walking surface.  Alternative materials such as timber and concrete are more typical to 
bridges where the walking surface sits on top of the beams and so it is higher above the railway 
and requires more approach structure to get to the height. 
 
With modern material sections, more appealing trusses can be produced, Vierendeel trusses, 
which have vertical members rather than diagonals.  These are also better to prevent climbing of 
the truss which is also the bridge parapet. 

Page 27



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 6 of 18 

 

 

 
 
 
Other alternative types of construction would include ‘statement’ structures such as cable stayed, 
bowstring arch or suspension bridges.  But all these structure types would be more expensive to 
manufacture and benefit from a viewing point orthogonal to the bridge.  In this situation with the 
bridge crossing a straight section of railway track there is limited locations to view the bridge and 
statement structures are not considered appropriate. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Vierendeel Truss bridge.  Green members provide structural strength as well as forming parapet. 

Various styles of ‘Feature Bridge’, Generally dependent on balancing two spans around a support with a cable tower.   

Longer Span ‘Feature Bridges’ using a Light weight triangular truss (Left) or Bowstrung Arch Truss(Right). 

Page 28



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 7 of 18 

 

 
Modern composite materials (glass-fibre reinforced polymers) GRP provide a further option for the 
bridge which are virtually maintenance free. Their initial costs are still high due to the specialist 
nature of the construction, however whole life costs are more favourable; the bridge over a railway 
(picture below) cost as a scheme £650k and would provide a comparable solution to the original 
bridge structure (i.e. not DDA compliant).  For a DDA compliance with ramps of GRP the costs 
would be in the order of three times this bridge (approx. £1.8million) and so is not considered 
further.  
 

 
 
 
Inspection & Maintenance 
 
Critical costs to be considered in a scheme are the costs for future Inspection and Maintenance.  
Modern paint systems applied to paintwork can provide up to 60years to major maintenance. With 
minor maintenance needed after 25 years.  As these specialist paint systems are more expensive 
it may be beneficial only to apply them to the span over the railway.  Using a more conventional 
paint system on the other sections of the bridge where access is easier.   
 
Inspection of bridges is typically carried out every 2 years in accordance with standards, and every 
6th year the Principal Inspection needs access to all areas, close enough to touch.  As the bridge is 
on/over railway land, permission and costs would be needed to access the bridge for inspection.  
By locating the supports for the bridge off network rail land, the cost to undertake inspections can 
be reduced as only the soffit of the main span would need to be accessed every 6 years. 
 
The provision of a composite bridge would reduce maintenance liabilities even further with limited 
maintenance needs for the 120year design life.  (As the materials are relatively new these low 
maintenance characteristics for such a long time are not yet substantiated.) 
 
 
Environmental Considerations & Permissions 
 
The location of the bridge is suburban and adjacent to a tree lined/overgrown bank.  No 
environmental assessments were carried out for this report although it is suspected that there 
would be little risk of the presence of protected species it would be prudent to undertake an 
assessment before committing to construction work.   
 
Nesting birds may be present in the overgrown bank which would need to be cleared for any 
works.  This would therefor push the work to be carried out, outside nesting season (March to 
September).  Alternatively work could be carried out at risk, under a watching brief to check for 
birds as work progresses. 
 
It is unlikely that environmental consent would be required for the works. 

GRP Bridge constructed over railway line in slight cutting. 

Page 29



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 8 of 18 

 

 

 
 
 
The existence of the original bridge at the site means that a replacement can be erected on the 
same line and of reasonable similarity without the need for planning consent (the bridge is a direct 
replacement).  However if the bridge is significantly changed in visual appearance i.e. a statement 
structure, or with the addition of significant approach ramp structures there would be a need to gain 
planning consent. 
 
Planning is likely to be consented to, for the addition of approach ramps, as they provide improved 
access, however the planning process may take up to three months from submission of the 
application and should be factored into any delivery programme considering significant change to 
the structure. 
 
 
Options Proposed 
 
Having discounted the provision of a statement structure or GRP alternative; and as the need for 
minimum height over the railway dictates a truss type structure the options available are based 
purely on accessibility, width and usage limitations. 
 
Four options have been identified 
 

• Option 1 – Similar to Existing 1.5m Wide 1.2 high Parapets  

• Option 2 – Full DDA Compliant 2.0m Wide 1.2 high Parapets 

• Option 3 – Similar to Existing but with Future DDA Compliance Provision 2m wide 
1.2m Parapets 

• Option 4 – DDA Compliant and Cycle Route 2.5m wide 1.4m high Parapets 
 
(NB in all options the Parapet on the bridge over the railway has to be 1.8m high with solid infill 
over the track.) 
 
 
Option 1 
 
The structurally most basic of options is to construct a bridge similar to the original.  This would 
comprise a flat span over the railway between columns built on railway property where the original 
supports were, with steps on the approaches to the span over the railway. 

Location of Bridge crossing showing vegetation adjacent to support location 

Page 30



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 9 of 18 

 

 
The proposed bridge would be wider than the original 1500 cf 890 between parapets as the extra 
width provides better compliance with current standards at little extra construction cost. 
 
This option carries risk in the obtaining of permission from Network Rail to reconstruct the columns 
on their property, and will incur slight additional cost for the requirement of Network Rail line 
blockades and supervisory staff during the construction. 
 
(Refer to Appendix B for plan and elevation of Option.) 
 
 
Option 2 
 
This option provides a fully DDA compliant solution which without other limitations should be 
adopted if at all possible. 
 
The main span over the railway is supported on columns outside the railway boundary providing 
ease of construction with no need to gain consent to construct on railway property land.  In addition 
the main span can be slightly arched; this achieves the clearance over the railway but starts to 
reduce the height of the bridge, so slightly reducing the length of approach ramps. 
 
To maintain a shallow gradient of no more than 1in20 this solution requires long lengths of 
approach ramps, from the public open space they will be a dominant feature looking East.  These 
have potential to be unsightly and as a significant addition to the bridge, planning consent will be 
required. 
 
The recommended width of the bridge and ramps is 2.0m to allow easy passing of two 
wheelchairs. 
 

 
 
 

Truss Bridge with 2m width providing sufficient space for passing users. 

Page 31



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 10 of 18 

 

To save on construction costs it is recommended that the lower length of the approach ramp be 
constructed by placing an earth embankment rather than steel spans.  This embankment can be 
topsoiled and landscaped in a manner to suit the use of the adjacent land (grass/bushes/trees). 
 
(Refer to Appendix B for plan and elevation of Option.) 
 
 
Option 3 
 
It is anticipated that as public funds are limited, and use of the original bridge and other routes to 
the public open space is generally by more able bodied people there may be difficulties in funding 
the fully DDA compliant option (Option 2).  This option provides a bridge similar in alignment and 
accessibility to the original (Option 1), but with a larger width and landings included in the design to 
allow for future installation of shallow approach ramps. 
 
This option would be more expensive to construct compared to Option 1 due to the additional 
landings and greater width, but is unlikely to require planning consent as it would be constructed 
primarily on the line of the original.  With provision for future upgrade to make it DDA compliant, 
construction could be justified as an interim measure to promptly replace the original bridge with 
the installation of ramps being possible in the future when further funding can be obtained. 
 
(Refer to Appendis B for plan of proposal, this is similar to Option 2 but without approach ramps 
included.) 
 
 
Option 4 
 
This option provides a fully DDA compliant solution with additional provision to suit use for cyclists.  
Should the installation of a new bridge on this route be considered holistically within the area of 
Llandrindod it may be that it could be developed into a cycle route for a ‘safe route to school’ or a 
local leisure network.  This may make it viable to tap into other funding pools and so provide an 
easier mechanism by which the reinstatement of the bridge can be made.   
 
Cycle provision would however increase the cost of the bridge as the parapets for cycle routes 
have to be 1.5m high (300mm more than pedestrian) and the bridge needs to be wider, a minimum 
of 2.5m wide, where there is combined use by cyclists and pedestrians.  Other than these changes 
the alignment and profile, planning requirements and access for construction are all the same as 
Option 2.  
 
(Refer to Option 2 for details of proposal but with wider ramps and bridge.  Ramps will take up 
1.0m more space.) 
 
 
Fabrication, Construction and Erection 
 
Steel structures of the proposed truss type are fabricated off site by specialists; the span lengths 
are no greater than 20m so for this location they can be fabricated as a complete length and 
brought to site and lifted into place. 
 
Painting of steelwork elements is also carried out off site by specialists to achieve a high quality 
paint system in environmentally controlled conditions which should optimise design life.  This also 
reduces the time on site during construction. 
 
Network Rail Requirements 
 
Working adjacent to the railway line on site will require agreement with Network rail.  This is 
required if the works would affect the track, i.e. if a crane could topple onto the track or if working 

Page 32



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 11 of 18 

 

directly lineside.  When working within their boundary, or where risks could occur to their 
infrastructure they require supervision by their staff, which incurs a cost hence keeping this nature 
of work to a minimum is beneficial.  It is therefore recommended that the main span over the 
railway be supported outside the rail boundary allowing foundations for the columns to be 
constructed without the need for Network Rail supervision costs. (Options 2-4) 
 
Actual work over the railway track, lifting the bridge into position will need to be undertaken with a 
full blockade of the track. This would generally be possible overnight for short periods or for slightly 
longer periods at weekends.  The original bridge was removed over the Easter weekend to provide 
a good length of time to demolish the structure.  The erection of the new bridge should be quicker 
as it will be designed to be installed quickly and so any weekend blockade should be possible for 
the works. (Current train times suggest no passenger trains run between 19:30 Sat until 13:30 Sun 
giving a 18hr working window.) 
 
Access Restrictions to Public Open Space & Road above Bridge 
 
The access to construct a new bridge from the West of the railway is restricted by access widths to 
the public open space.  In addition the field and newly planted community orchard would need to 
be crossed to get to the site.  This therefor precludes access by large construction plant to deliver 
the bridge and approach spans, and to locate a crane on the land here closest to the bridge. 
 
Access will be needed to the West to construct foundations for the bridge columns, and 
construction of the earth approach ramp.  These works could be carried out reasonably with 
medium sized plant, although there will be additional costs to reinstate the access routes over the 
public open space on completion. 
 
Access to the East of the railway can be gained along Temple Avenue and onto the un-adopted 
highway leading to Alexandra Court.  This access would be needed to construct foundations for 
supports for the East elements of the bridge.  In addition this location has been considered to site a 
large crane to lift the bridge elements into position, for both the East and West sides of the railway. 
 
The largest span proposed for a new footbridge (20m over the railway) has an estimated weight of 
18.5tonnes, using this weight and the reach needed from the East side to the furthest access ramp 
to the West of 50m, a 800te crane would be required.  Although these cranes are large, their 
manoeuvrability is good and could easily be located adjacent to the East of the bridge.  Closure of 
the access to Alexander Court and Temple Avenue would be needed for the duration of the lift with 
appropriate provision made for access by residents and emergency vehicles.  (Refer to Appendix 
D for crane details.) 
 

 
 Similar crane size lifting 27m span bridge into place. 

Page 33



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 12 of 18 

 

 
A search of statutory undertakers equipment has identified buried services of Dwr Cymru, British 
Telecom, Streetlighting Electric and Wales and West Gas.  These services appear to skirt the 
envisaged location for the crane and should not interfere with its use.  Agreement with the 
apparatus owners would be needed to check the condition for positioning a crane above.  A 
streetlighting column is likely to need taking down for the bridge lift and reinstating on completion.  
Appendix C provides details of Statutory Undertakers equipment. 
 

 
 
 
 
Programme for Construction 
 
A typical programme for construction is envisaged to take 12 weeks.  Typical activities (which can 
coincide to some extent) would be: 
 

• Fabrication of bridge steel elements off site 8 weeks  

• Painting of Bridge Elements off Site 2 weeks 

• Construction of Support Foundations/Wall 4 Weeks 

• Construction of Approach Ramp to north 2 Weeks 

• Erection of Bridge Elements 2No Consecutive Weekends 

• Final site demobilisation 1 Week 
 
 
 
Advance Works 
 
At present a basic topographic survey of the original bridge line has been undertaken.   Prior to 
detail design a full survey covering the whole bridge area (including ramps would be required).  
This survey will allow accurate quantification of excavation and fill requirements and depths for 
foundations. 
 
The proposals in this report have assumed that the bridge will be supported on spread concrete 
foundations.  This is likely to be the case as footbridge loads are not significant and ground 
conditions appear to be good.  To remove the risk during construction and to more efficiently 
design the foundation it is recommended that geotechnical investigation comprising boreholes and 
trial pits are carried out on both sides of the railway.  Costs for these works are in the order of 
£2000 and would help direct the detail design. 
 
For a tenderer to economically price a scheme the less risk they have to take on the better.  As the 
location of the crane can be critical to the crane size the exact location and type of services in the 
carriageway/verges are best known.  It is recommended that the apparatus owners are brought to 
site as early as possible in the design stage to locate their apparatus and confirm condition and 
any restrictions they may have. 

Lighting column to be removed during the works. 

Page 34



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 13 of 18 

 

 
 
Cost Estimate for Works 
 
Costs for the various options have been indicated below.  Fabrication, painting, erection and 
construction costs have been established for the various options based on recent costs for similar 
works on other projects.  In addition to these costs there are design and advance costs similar for 
all proposals. 
 
Detail Design & Contract Documentation Fees £   25,000 
Topographic Survey £     1,500 
Advance Geotechnical Works. £     3,000 
Site supervision £     5,000 
Network Rail Agreements £   10,000 
 Sub-Total £   28,500 
 
 
  

 

  
 
 

 

Option 2 - Full DDA Compliant 

  Element Width 

Parapet 

Ht. 

Cost 

£k 

1No Ramp Span 13m 2 1.2 50.5 

1No Ramp Span 15m 2 1.2 61.5 

1No Main Span 20m 2 1.2 to 1.95 96.5 

4No Ramp Span 18m 2 1.2 296 

2No Stair Flight 2 1.2 43.5 

8No Columns & Foundations 2.0x2.0 1.2 98 

1No Crainage - - 44 

1No Earth Ramp & End Wall - - 25 

1No Site Preliminaries - - 30 

1No Network Rail Supervision - - 8 

   

Sub Total 753 

 

Option 1 - Similar to Existing 

  Element Width 

Parapet 

Ht. 

Cost 

£k 

1No Ramp Span 8.5m 1.5 1.2 37.5 

1No Main Span 10m 1.5 1.8 43.5 

3No Stair Flight 1.5 1.2 61.5 

4No Columns & Foundations 1.5x2.0 1.2 44.5 

1No Crainage - - 14.5 

1No Site Preliminaries - - 10 

1No Network Rail Supervision - - 10 

   

Sub Total 221.5 
Scheme Total 
£250,000 

Scheme Total 
£781,500 

Page 35



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 14 of 18 

 

 

Option 3 - Similar to existing - With DDA future provision 

  Element Width Parapet Ht. 

Cost 

£k 

- Ramp Span 13m - - - 

- Ramp Span 15m - - - 

1No Main Span 20m 2 1.2 to 1.95 96.5 

- Ramp Span 18m - - - 

4No Stair Flight 2 1.2 87 

4No Columns & Foundations 2.0x2.0 1.2 46 

1No Crainage - - 14.5 

- Earth Ramp & End Wall - - - 

1No Site Preliminaries - - 15 

1No Network Rail Supervision - - 3 

   

Sub Total 262 

 
 

Option 4 - Full DDA Compliant Cycle Route 

  Element Width Parapet Ht. 

Cost 

£k 

1No Ramp Span 13m 2.5 1.4 67.5 

1No Ramp Span 15m 2.5 1.4 77.5 

1No Main Span 20m 2.5 1.4 to 1.95 102.5 

4No Ramp Span 18m 2.5 1.4 371.5 

2No Stair Flight 2 1.4 47.5 

8No Columns & Foundations 2.5x2.0 1.4 110 

1No Crainage - - 44 

1No Earth Ramp & End Wall - - 25 

1No Site Preliminaries - - 30 

1No Network Rail Supervision - - 10 

   

Sub Total 885.5 

  
 
 
 
Conclusion 
 
The reinstatement of a new bridge at the site of the original Alexandra Road Footbridge can be 
achieved in various ways.  The cost of installation of a fully DDA compliant solution, which would 
need substantial approach ramps, may not present best use of funds.  A replacement structure 
similar to the original but meeting current design loading standards would be the cheapest option 
but is not recommended as no consideration is given to future use by mobility impaired users.  
Hence, if funds are not available for a fully DDA compliant solution, it is recommended a bridge is 
installed which is wider than the original with provision for future extension to incorporate ramps to 
make it DDA compliant (Option 3). 
 

 
 

Scheme Total 
£290,500 

Scheme Total 
£914,000 

Page 36



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 15 of 18 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
 

Original Bridge Construction Details 

Page 37



P
age 38



P
age 39



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.02 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 16 of 18 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix B 
 

Option Sketches and Details 
 
 
 

Page 40



C:\USERS\600160\DESKTOP\REPORT GA JJC222222.DWG10/05/2016 15:39:21

CYWI

Drawing No.

Rhif Lluniad

DARLUNWYD GAN :

DRAWN BY :

GRADDFEYDD :

SCALES :

GWIRIWYD GAN :

CHECKED BY :

DYDDIAD GWIRIWYD :

DATE CHECKED :

DATE DRAWN :

DYDDIAD DARLUNWYD :

Taflen

Sheet of

o

REV

TEITL LLUNIAD / DRAWING TITLE :

CYNLLUN / SCHEME :

CYNGOR

GWYNEDD
COUNCIL

A d e i l a d w a i t h
S t r u c t u r e s






 

 

  



©

©

10m. main span solid infill

ppt 1.8m. height.

3 flights 11No stairs.

U
p 1in7

F
lat

1.5m. Between ppts across bridge.

8.5m. ramp span - 1.2m. parapet

Page 41



C:\USERS\600160\DESKTOP\REPORT GA JJC222222.DWG12/05/2016 11:20:58

CYWI

Drawing No.

Rhif Lluniad

DARLUNWYD GAN :

DRAWN BY :

GRADDFEYDD :

SCALES :

GWIRIWYD GAN :

CHECKED BY :

DYDDIAD GWIRIWYD :

DATE CHECKED :

DATE DRAWN :

DYDDIAD DARLUNWYD :

Taflen

Sheet of

o

REV

TEITL LLUNIAD / DRAWING TITLE :

CYNLLUN / SCHEME :

CYNGOR

GWYNEDD
COUNCIL

A d e i l a d w a i t h
S t r u c t u r e s






 

 

  



Path on soil embankment.

15 & 13m. ramp spans.

Ramp span details similar to drawing

2029/SS/002.

4No. 18m. Ramp Spans.

Concrete retaining wall to end

of soil ramp.

U
p
 
1
i
n
2
0

U
p
 
1
i
n
2
0

U
p
 
1
i
n
2
0

U
p
 
1
i
n
2
0

U
p
 
1
i
n
2
0

U
p
 
1
i
n
2
0

U
p
 
1
i
n
2
0

Note:

* Landing frequency not compliant due to land restrictions.

U
p 1in20

U
p 1in20

C
am

bered M
ain S

pan

©

©

Stair Flight (9 Stairs).

20m. Main Span.

(See Elevation).

Boundary to village green.

2no. Stair Flight (13 Stairs).

Page 42



~35m 40m

\\
YG

C.
GW

YN
ED

D.
GO

V.
UK

@
SS

L\
DA

VW
W
W
RO

OT
\P

D\
R3

\5
46

7\
DD

 -
 D

ES
IG
N 

DO
CU

ME
NT

S\
OP

TI
ON

S 
1 
TO

 3
 S

KE
TC

HE
S.
DW

G
09

/0
6/

20
16
 1
0:
40

:3
0

CYWI

Drawing No.

Rhif Lluniad

DARLUNWYD GAN :

DRAWN BY :

GRADDFEYDD :

SCALES :

GWIRIWYD GAN :

CHECKED BY :

DYDDIAD GWIRIWYD :

DATE CHECKED :

DATE DRAWN :

DYDDIAD DARLUNWYD :

Taflen

Sheet of

o

REV

TEITL LLUNIAD / DRAWING TITLE :

CYNLLUN / SCHEME :

CYNGOR

GWYNEDD
COUNCIL

A d e i l a d w a i t h
S t r u c t u r e s






 

 

  



B
o
u
n
d
a
r
y
 
o
f
 
R

e
c
r
e
a
t
i
o
n
a
l
 
G

r
o
u
n
d

T
r
e
e
 
l
i
n
e
 
r
e
p
a
r
a
t
i
v
e

d
e
s
i
g
n
a
t
e
d
 
v
i
l
l
a
g
e
 
g
r
e
e
n

Fence to top of embankment required

for safety. Not shown.

Top Landing

Level 5.3m.

P
age 43



C:\USERS\600160\DESKTOP\REPORT GA JJC222222.DWG09/06/2016 10:25:33

U
p 1in20

U
p 1in20

C
am

bered M
ain S

pan

©

©

Stair Flight (9 Stairs).

20m. Main Span.

(See Elevation).

3no. Stair Flight (13 Stairs).

CYWI

Drawing No.

Rhif Lluniad

DARLUNWYD GAN :

DRAWN BY :

GRADDFEYDD :

SCALES :

GWIRIWYD GAN :

CHECKED BY :

DYDDIAD GWIRIWYD :

DATE CHECKED :

DATE DRAWN :

DYDDIAD DARLUNWYD :

Taflen

Sheet of

o

REV

TEITL LLUNIAD / DRAWING TITLE :

CYNLLUN / SCHEME :

CYNGOR

GWYNEDD
COUNCIL

A d e i l a d w a i t h
S t r u c t u r e s






 

 

  



Provision to landing for future ramp.

Provision to landing for future ramp.

Page 44



P
age 45



P
age 46



P
age 47



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 17 of 18 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix C 
 

Statutory Undertaker Information 

Page 48



1:1000

Reproduced from the Ordnance 
Survey 's  maps  w i th  the  

permiss ion of  the Contro l ler  o f  
Her  Majes ty ' s  S ta t ionary  Of f i ce .  

Crown Copyr ight .  L i cence No:  
WU298565.

Scale:

EXACT LOCATION OF 
ALL APPARATUS TO 
BE DETERMINED ON 

SITE

D w r  C y m r u  C y f y n g e d i g  ( ' t h e  C o m p a n y ' )  g i v e s  t h i s  i n f o r m a t i o n  a s  t o  t h e  p o s i t i o n  o f  i t s  u n d e r g r o u n d  a p p a r a t u s  b y  w a y  
o f  g e n e r a l  g u i d a n c e  o n l y  a n d  o n  t h e  s t r i c t  u n d e r s t a n d i n g  t h a t  i t  i s  b a s e d  o n  t h e  b e s t  i n f o r m a t i o n  a v a i l a b l e  a n d  n o  
w a r r a n t y  a s  t o  i t s  c o r r e c t n e s s  i s  r e l i e d  u p o n  i n  t h e  e v e n t  o f  e x c a v a t i o n s  o r  o t h e r  w o r k s  m a d e  i n  t h e  v i c i n i t y  o f  t h e  
C o m p a n y ' s  a p p a r a t u s  a n d  a n y  o n u s  o f  l o c a t i n g  t h e  a p p a r a t u s  b e f o r e  c a r r y i n g  o u t  a n y  e x c a v a t i o n s  r e s t s  e n t i r e l y  o n  
y o u .  T h e  i n f o r m a t i o n  w h i c h  i s  s u p p l i e d  h e r e b y  b y  t h e  C o m p a n y ,  i s  d o n e  s o  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  s t a t u t o r y  r e q u i r e m e n t s  
o f  s e c t i o n s  1 9 8  a n d  1 9 9  o f  t h e  W a t e r  I n d u s t r y  A c t  1 9 9 1  b a s e d  u p o n  t h e  b e s t  i n f o r m a t i o n  a v a i l a b l e  a n d  i n  p a r t i c u l a r ,  
b u t  w i t h o u t  p r e j u d i c e  t o  t h e  g e n e r a l i t y  o f  t h e  f o r e g o i n g ,  i t  s h o u l d  b e  n o t e d  t h a t  t h e  r e c o r d s  t h a t  a r e  a v a i l a b l e  t o  t h e  
C o m p a n y  m a y  n o t  d i s c l o s e  t h e  e x i s t e n c e  o f  a  d r a i n  s e w e r  o r  d i s p o s a l  m a i n  l a i d  b e f o r e  1  S e p t e m b e r  1 9 8 9 ,  o r  i f  t h e y  
d o ,  t h e  p a r t i c u l a r s  t h e r e o f  i n c l u d i n g  t h e i r  p o s i t i o n  u n d e r g r o u n d  m a y  n o t  b e  a c c u r a t e .  I t  m u s t  b e  u n d e r s t o o d  t h a t  t h e  
f u r n i s h i n g  o f  t h i s  i n f o r m a t i o n  i s  e n t i r e l y  w i t h o u t  p r e j u d i c e  t o  t h e  p r o v i s i o n  o f  t h e  N e w  R o a d s  a n d  S t r e e t  W o r k s  A c t  
1 9 9 1  a n d  t h e  C o m p a n y ' s  r i g h t  t o  b e  c o m p e n s a t e d  f o r  a n y  d a m a g e  t o  i t s  a p p a r a t u s .

W h i l s t  e v e r y  r e a s o n a b l e  e f f o r t  h a s  b e e n  
t a k e n  t o  c o r r e c t l y  r e c o r d  t h e  p i p e  m a t e r i a l  
o f  D C W W  a s s e t s ,  t h e r e  i s  a  p o s s i b i l i t y  t h a t  i n  
s o m e  c a s e s  p i p e  m a t e r i a l  ( o t h e r  t h a n  
A s b e s t o s  C e m e n t  o r  P i t c h  F i b r e )  m a y  b e  
f o u n d  t o  b e  a s b e s t o s  c e m e n t  ( A C )  o r  P i t c h  
F i b r e  ( P F )  .  I t  i s  t h e r e f o r e  a d v i s a b l e  t h a t  t h e  
p o s s i b l e  p r e s e n c e  o f  A C  o r  P F  p i p e s  b e  
a n t i c i p a t e d  a n d  c o n s i d e r e d  a s  p a r t  o f  a n y  
r i s k  a s s e s s m e n t  p r i o r  t o  e x c a v a t i o n

04/05/2016

⇧

305776,260692

P
age 49



Date
User ID
Scale

The  plan sh ows t hose p ip es owned by Wales & We st Utilitie s (WW U) in its ro le  as a L ice nsed Ga s Tra nsporter (GT). The info rm ation sho wn  on th is p la n is derive d from hist oric informa tio n an d
may ha ve involved re-sca ling  plans, a nd th e accuracy of it ca nnot be g uarante ed. S ervice pipe s, valve s, syp hon s,  stub con nections, etc. ma y not be sho wn but th eir p re se nce sho uld be
anticip ated . No  wa rranties a re  therefo re give n in respect o f it. WW U its em ployees a nd con tra ct ors d o no t accept  any liability fo r a ny inaccuracy or in comp let eness in it.

You must u se  safe digging p ra ct ices, in acco rd ance w ith HS(G)47,  to e st ablish  the actual po sition  of m ains, pipe s,  services an d oth er appa rat us on site befo re any me chanical plan t is u sed. I t is
yo ur resp onsibility to  ensure th at th is info rm ation is provided  to all pe rsons (eithe r d irect lab our or contractors) workin g for you or near ga s appa rat us. The info rm ation sho wn  on th is p la n shou ld
not b e used  beyon d 28  days from the d ate of issu e of  this plan a s it is sub je ct  to u pdating .

The  plan also  provid es indications o f gas p ip es owned by oth er GTs, o r o therwise p rivately owned , which  may b e presen t in this area.  This info rm ation is no t in format io n of W WU and WWU is
unab le  to ver ify this informat io n or to co nfirm  wh ether it is accurate o r com plete . It is supp lied vo lu ntar ily to  assist  the u ser in dete rm in ing  wh ethe r to  ma ke  conta ct  with o ther GTs or oth ers. The
user must o btain su ch  in formation  from t he ot her GT o r p erso n conce rne d. WW U, its e mployee s and co ntractors do n ot accep t any liabilit y for this in formation  or any ina ccu racy or
inco mplete ness in it.

© All MasterMap data is reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey
on behalf of HMSO. © Crown copyright and database right 2016. A ll
rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Licence number 0100044308.

1 : 1000@A3
robatwil liam s@ gwy ned

04/05/2016

Easting:  305769
Northing: 260696Grid Ref:

Internal Use Only

Wales and West Utilities Ltd ., Wales and West House, Spooner Close, Celtic
Springs, Coedkernew, Newport, NP10 8FZ

TITLE:

0 5025
Meters

P
age 50



Page 51



CPF5467 – Alexandra Road Footbridge Replacement Options Report 
Version 0.03 

 

Gwynedd Consultancy Page 18 of 18 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix D 
 

Crane Geometry & Lifting Radii 
 

 
 

 

Page 52



�� ���������	
�� �
����
���������� ����� �������� ���� ����������������
���
�������
������ �
�������� ����� � � 
��� 
��� ���������
������

��
��� ����������������������������� ���� ��
���������
��� ���  ���������������������������� ���������!"#$%&'$()&*()+(,*'-.$'$(/010%&'$()&*(&%&'$()&*($)010234356789:53;3 <=>?@A@BCD?EFCGEF@A@HEIGDJK?D?EL@A@BCD?EFCGEC@A@BCD?EFCGE?F@A@MNOPQRSTDDU U V W B H X Y YZ[\]̂[]]@DD_[̀a]]@b@c\ ]̀]] �d\] ce[c �]]] ��] ]̀] [[f [gf [[f[ea]]@b@c\ ]̀]] �g]] c\\c �]]] �d] \̀] [[f [gf [[fc]a\@b@c\ ]̀]] �g]] ch]c �c�] �d] \̀] [[f [gf [[f_@=Ji?F?EjL@A@kGl?K?m@A@=J=CFFn@A@=JJ=FF=LG@A@FoFp?EFCqE@=J=rG@A@sNttuTvtNwQxv
Page 53



Crane Capacity Guide
Our crane capacity guide can be used to aid in selecting the crane capacity

required for your lift. 

The guide has been split into two sections: 0-20 & 21-40 tonnes

0-20 
tonnes:

t\m

0.5t

1t

2t

3t

4t

5t

6t

7t

8t

9t

10t

11t

12t

13t

14t

15t

16t

17t

18t

19t

20t

7m

20t

20t

20t

20t

20t

20t

25t

25t

25t

35t

35t

35t

35t

35t

50t

50t

50t

50t

60t

60t

60t

8m

20t

20t

20t

20t

20t

20t

25t

25t

35t

35t

35t

35t

50t

50t

50t

50t

50t

60t

70t

70t

70t

9m

20t

20t

20t

20t

20t

25t

25t

25t

35t

35t

35t

50t

50t

50t

50t

60t

60t

70t

70t

70t

80t

10m

20t

20t

20t

20t

20t

25t

25t

35t

35t

50t

50t

50t

50t

50t

50t

70t

70t

70t

80t

80t

80t

12m

20t

20t

20t

20t

25t

35t

35t

50t

50t

50t

60t

60t

70t

80t

80t

80t

80t

90t

90t

100t

100t

14m

20t

20t

20t

25t

32t

35t

50t

50t

60t

60t

70t

80t

80t

80t

90t

100t

100t

100t

100t

120t

120t

16m

20t

20t

25t

35t

35t

50t

50t

60t

60t

70t

80t

90t

100t

100t

100t

100t

120t

120t

120t

120t

160t

18m

20t

20t

25t

35t

50t

50t

60t

70t

80t

80t

90t

100t

100t

120t

120t

120t

120t

160t

160t

160t

160t

20m

20t

25t

35t

50t

50t

60t

70t

80t

90t

90t

100t

100t

120t

120t

120t

160t

160t

160t

160t

160t

200t

22m

20t

25t

35t

50t

60t

70t

80t

90t

90t

100t

120t

120t

120t

160t

160t

160t

160t

160t

200t

200t

200t

24m

25t

35t

50t

60t

70t

80t

90t

100t

100t

120t

160t

160t

160t

160t

160t

160t

200t

200t

200t

200t

225t

26m

25t

35t

50t

70t

80t

80t

90t

100t

120t

120t

160t

160t

160t

160t

200t

200t

200t

225t

225t

225t

225t

28m

35t

50t

60t

70t

80t

90t

100t

120t

120t

160t

160t

160t

160t

200t

200t

225t

225t

225t

250t

250t

250t

30m

35t

50t

60t

80t

90t

100t

100t

120t

160t

160t

160t

200t

200t

200t

225t

225t

250t

250t

250t

250t

250t

32m

50t

60t

70t

80t

90t

100t

120t

160t

160t

160t

200t

225t

225t

225t

250t

250t

250t

250t

250t

300t

300t

34m

50t

70t

80t

90t

100t

120t

160t

160t

160t

200t

225t

225t

225t

250t

250t

250t

250t

300t

300t

400t

400t

36m

70t

70t

80t

90t

100t

120t

160t

160t

200t

225t

225t

250t

250t

250t

250t

250t

300t

300t

400t

400t

400t

38m

70t

70t

80t

100t

120t

160t

160t

160t

200t

225t

225t

250t

250t

250t

250t

300t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

40m

80t

80t

90t

100t

120t

160t

160t

200t

225t

225t

250t

250t

300t

300t

300t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

42m

80t

80t

100t

120t

160t

160t

160t

200t

225t

250t

250t

300t

300t

300t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

44m

80t

90t

100t

120t

160t

160t

200t

225t

250t

250t

250t

300t

300t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

46m

90t

100t

120t

160t

160t

200t

225t

225t

250t

250t

300t

300t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

400t

500t

500t

500t

48m

120t

120t

120t

160t

160t

200t

225t

250t

250t

300t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

50m

120t

120t

160t

160t

200t

225t

225t

250t

300t

300t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

52m

120t

120t

160t

200t

225t

250t

250t

300t

300t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

54m

120t

120t

160t

200t

225t

300t

300t

300t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

800t

1/Locate the weight of load and crane operating radius
2/Where the columns intersect, read the capacity of crane required

www.bobfranciscranehire.co.ukPage 54



Document is Restricted

Page 55

By virtue of paragraph(s) 16 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 16 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 16 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Cyngor Sir County Council

211.5m

211.7m211.7m

211.5m

21
0.

5m

21
0.

5m

208.5m208.5m

CS

CS

Def

ED Bdy

CS

Def

ED Bdy

CS

Wellfield

Hotel

House

Four Oaks

Glenora

Y
 G

ar
th

A
le

x
a

n
d

ra
 H

o
u

s
e

1

Shelte
r

Lound

Tree Tops

Little Meads

Greenacres

Claerwen

Woodville

5
-1

8

Grasmere

Broadmead

Ullswater

The Poplars

PW

Trevaldwyn

Overmoor

York House

Parkdene

R
o

s
s
l a

r e

S
u

n
n

y
 M

e
a

d

K
a

ri
b
a

2 3 4

T
h
e

 H
a

v
e
n

Montpellier

Brookville

Court

1

Hazeldene

W
el

lin
g
to

n 
T
er

rCartref

5

Llwynhir

1

Golf View

1

P
i e

d
m

o
n
t

Heathfield

W
e
s
tm

in
s
te

r H
o

u
s
e

F
a
ir
m

o
u
n

t

E
ls

d
o
n

B
ir
k
d
a
le

T
re

g
a

rt
h

Sherwood

T
h
e
 K

n
o
l l

Westcroft

Rhos L
le

ty
 H

e
u
lo

g

Bycroft

Io
n

a

O
a
k
s

Craigleigh

F
a
y
re

Ferncliffe

M
e
g
le

y

7

K
ingsland

Reddings

Carlyon

O
rielton

1
2

Bram
pton

B
ry

n
d
e
rw

e
n

V
e
ro

n
a

T
y
 N

e
w

y
d
d

Waverley

2

1S
e

a
fo

rt
h

E
ir
ia

n
fa

D
in

g
le

s
id

e

B
ry

n
c
e
fn

House

Alexandra Court

The Eyrie

Westwood

1

1 - 23

P
an

te
g

Westering

M
eadowview

3

W
ellington House

The Firs

1

The Glen

Highbury

Windsor House

Norwood

Brynowen

Doristan

Llonydd

Manderlay

Arlington

F
a

irh
a

v
e

n

T
e
v
io

t

K
il l

a
w

a
y

6

Bron Yr Ysgol

T
ry

f a
n

Trosnant

O
a

k
d
e

n
e

G
l e

n
h

o
lm

e

Rhyd-llyn-du

Residential
Hom

e

Hawth

Bowls Centre

Hall

Baveno

House
Park

Cecil Lodge

1-12

Pavilion

Centre

Health

Rock Park

Pump Room

Bundamba

Aylesford

Park

1

Cottages

2

Pavilion

Elgan

Maldwyn

Arosfa

Clarendon

Cy Inwen

Merville

Avoncroft

The Leys

Deva
Rotherslade

Brynllyn

Pen y Bryn

Southville

Lound

Tree Tops

2 3 4

Baveno

House
Park

Cecil Lodge

1-12

Pavilion

Residential
Hom

e

Hawth

Bowls Centre

Deva
Rotherslade

Brynllyn

Pen y Bryn

Grasmere

Broadmead

Ullswater

The Poplars

PW

Trevaldwyn

Overmoor

Ferncliffe

M
e
g
le

y

7

K
ingsland

Reddings

Carlyon

O
rielton

T
h
e
 K

n
o
l l

T
e
v
io

t

K
il l

a
w

a
y

Westcroft

6

Rhos

Bron Yr Ysgol

T
ry

f a
n

L
le

ty
 H

e
u
lo

g

P
i e

d
m

o
n
t

Heathfield

W
e
s
tm

in
s
te

r H
o

u
s
e

F
a
ir
m

o
u
n

t

V
e
ro

n
a

T
y
 N

e
w

y
d
d

Waverley

2

1S
e

a
fo

rt
h

E
ir
ia

n
fa

Alexandra Court

The Eyrie

3

Westwood

1

1 - 23

P
an

te
g

Westering

5

Llwynhir

W
ellington House

1

Cartref

The Firs

Doristan

Highbury

Clarendon

Windsor House

Cy Inwen

Merville

Manderlay

Avoncroft

Norwood

Hall

Woodville

Wellfield

House

Elgan

House

Centre

Rock Park

Health

Pump Room

Pavilion

Aylesford

Park

Bundamba

1

Cottages

2

Hotel

Brookville

Montpellier

Court

1

5
-1

8

Parkdene

York House

R
o

s
s
l a

r e

Little Meads

Claerwen

A
le

x
a

n
d

ra
 H

o
u

s
e

Shelte
r

E
ls

d
o
n

Sherwood

Four Oaks

Bram
pton

1
2

B
ry

n
d
e
rw

e
n

Greenacres

Y
 G

ar
th

B
ry

n
c
e
fn

T
h
e

 H
a

v
e
n

D
in

g
le

s
id

e

K
a

r i
b
a

1

O
a

k
d
e

n
e

Bycroft

F
a

irh
a

v
e

n S
u

n
n

y
 M

e
a

d

G
l e

n
h

o
lm

e

T
re

g
a

rt
h B
ir
k
d
a
le

W
el

lin
g
to

n 
T
er

r

M
eadowview

1

Brynowen

The Leys

The Glen

Glenora

1

Golf View

Southville

Hazeldene

Arlington

Llonydd

Trosnant

Rhyd-llyn-du

Maldwyn

Io
n

a

O
a
k
s

Craigleigh

F
a
y
re

Arosfa

Court

Tennis

MP 32.25

El Sub

Tennis

Court

Sta

FB

Sub

El

TCB

Sta

LB

T
ra

ck

Rock Park

Sulphur Wells
FB

P
a

th

Playing Field

MP 32.25

El Sub
Sta

Court

Tennis

Tennis

Court

LB

TCB

FB

T
ra

ck

Sub

El

Sta

Rock Park

Sulphur Wells

P
a

th

Playing Field

FB

A
 4

0
8

A
L
E
X

A
N

D
R

A
 R

O
A

D

TEMPLE AVENUE

T
E
M

P
L
E

D
R

IV
E

A
LE

X
A
N

D
R

A
 T

E
R
R

A
C

E

T
E

M
P

L
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
A
R

K
 LA

N
E

C
L
O

S
E

GROSVENOR ROAD

MONTPELLIER PARK

PARC MONTPELLIER

P
A

R
K

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E

MONTPELLIER PARK

A
 4

0
8

A
L
E
X

A
N

D
R

A
 R

O
A

D

TEMPLE AVENUE

T
E
M

P
L
E

D
R

IV
E

A
LE

X
A
N

D
R

A
 T

E
R
R

A
C

E

T
E

M
P

L
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
A
R

K
 LA

N
E

C
L
O

S
E

GROSVENOR ROAD

PARC MONTPELLIER

P
A

R
K

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E

Arlais Brook
Chalybeate

Spring

Arlais Brook
Chalybeate

Spring

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Footbridge on Footpath LL10A, Llandrindod Wells
	Appendix 1 Portfolio Holder Delegated Decision Report 24 Nov 2015 Alexandra Road Footbridge
	Appendix 2a Summary of Correspondence received via Kirsty Williams 2b Email from Interested Parties
	Appendix 3 YGC Alexandra Road Footbridge Report Replacement Options Report
	Appendix 4a Llandrindod Wells, Wales
	Appendix 4b - Plan CONFIDENTIAL AND LEGALLY PRIVILEGED
	Appendix 5 Llandrindod Wells, Wales
	Appendix 6 Footpath LL10(A) footbridge alternative routes


